

# **Writtle University College Admissions Policy Statement for Higher Education**

Admissions cycle 2021/22 for entry 2022 Head of Registry & Admissions October 2021

Writtle University College Lordship Road, Chelmsford Essex CM1 3RR

Tel: +44 (0)1245 424200 Fax: +44 (0)1245 420456 Email: info@writtle.ac.uk www.writtle.ac.uk











# Contents

1	Core admissions principles	2
2	Admissions process - overview	2
3	Applicants with additional support needs or disabilities	3
4	Admissions criteria and selection	5
5	Deferred Entry	6
6	Interviews	6
7	Admissions tests	7
8	Portfolio guidelines	7
9	Contextual data	7
10	Offers	7
11	Your right to cancel	8
12	Feedback to unsuccessful applicants	8
13	Applicant appeals and complaints procedure	8
14	Confirmation of results	8
15	Student Induction	8
16	Accreditation of prior and experiential learning (AP(E)L)	9
17	Fees and Finances	9
18	English Language Requirements	9
19	Fraudulent statements, omissions and similarity detection	10
20	Discontinued or suspended courses	10
21	Changes to course content or delivery	10
22	Data protection and privacy	11
23	Record keeping	11

#### 1 Core admissions principles

The Admissions Policy Statement for Higher Education should be read in conjunction with the latest Writtle University College — Higher Education Student Agreement, Terms and Conditions available on our website at: https://writtle.ac.uk/HE-Regulations-&-Policies

The Admissions Policy Statement for Higher Education underlies all activity that the University College undertakes in relation to student recruitment, selection and admission, from initial enquiry through to registration of a student. The policy supports the relationship and engagement with the student and is aligned to our strategic framework, mission and vision.

Writtle University College operates an open Admissions Policy that ensures fair, transparent and equitable treatment of all applicants and is committed to providing a flexible, high quality teaching and learning environment, focused on supporting students in achieving their full potential. This Policy relates to all undergraduate and postgraduate taught programmes offered at Writtle University College and should be read in conjunction with the Writtle University College Higher Education Regulations and Policies available on our website at https://writtle.ac.uk/HE-Regulations-&-Policies

The University College is committed to a policy of equality of opportunity and aims to provide a learning and social environment that is free from unfair discrimination. The University College believes that a student body that is diverse in terms of background and experience contributes to a stimulating learning environment.

All applicants are considered for admission based on educational performance and/or professional experience that provides evidence of ability to meet the demands of the chosen course. The University College therefore welcomes applications from all students with the potential to succeed at Writtle University College. Applicants are evaluated as individuals, considering both academic and vocational achievements, potential to achieve and to meet higher education outcomes.

Responsibility for this Policy rests with the WUC Academic Board.

#### 2 Admissions process - overview

The University College operates a centralised Admissions Office to provide a common and transparent approach. Admissions staff make standard offers based on agreed and confirmed course entry criteria and work closely with subject specialist admissions officers to ensure that all offers are fair and concise. The central Admissions Office is responsible for all communications with UCAS, including the transmissions of admissions decisions.

Applications for full-time undergraduate courses should be made through the Universities and Colleges Admissions Service (UCAS). The University College observes the procedures and deadlines for the handling of applications as set out by UCAS. All applications for admissions to full-time undergraduate degree courses must be made through UCAS. All applications for undergraduate courses should normally be received by the UCAS deadline date of 26 January 2022; however, the University College will continue to consider late applications with equal consideration, subject to availability.

Applications for part time study, postgraduate and further education courses should be made direct to the University College. All applications should be made through the central Admissions Office via the online forms posted on our website.

We welcome applications from mature students who are not applying directly from, or within a year of leaving, school or college, who have non-standard qualifications or who wish work experience to be taken into account as part of their

application. The personal statement and reference provide important supplementary information regarding ability, motivation and potential, as well as information about personal circumstances which will be taken into account in reaching an admissions decision.

Allowance will be made for any applicant with verified exceptional circumstances or who face difficult issues or challenges, for example: disrupted studies or examinations; illness; death of a family member.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to provide full and accurate information as part of the admissions process and to notify the University College of any changes or corrections to their original application.

Applications from international students will be considered and processed consistently in line with Home applications. However, unconditional letters will include the necessary text to comply with the UK Visas & Immigration (Home Office) Points Based System (Student) entry procedure. International applicants will be expected to have achieved the equivalent of the minimum entry requirement. The Admissions Officer will make an assessment and evaluation using both UK ENIC (National Information Centre) and the UCAS Guide to International Qualifications. International applicants must be proficient in English to the standard required by the University College.

The University College encourages all applicants to visit the campus and see the extensive facilities. All applicants have the opportunity to visit the University College or attend an Open Day. For the majority of courses, the University College does not require the applicant to attend a formal interview. However, in some cases applicants will be interviewed if it is felt that this would identify the potential to study and succeed. For Design courses, applicants are encouraged to attend an interview which provides an opportunity to present a portfolio of art/design work.

# 3 Applicants with additional support needs or disabilities

Applicants with disabilities or additional needs are considered on the same academic grounds as all other applicants and this consideration is separate from the discussion centred on the applicant's other needs. However, the University College has a duty of care to all staff and students and cannot guarantee to provide for the needs of every individual. Applicants are encouraged to disclose their additional support needs or disability at the point of application or earlier to ensure that appropriate levels of support and/or reasonable adjustments are available from the outset of the course. Specialist support staff are available to discuss any aspect of individual needs, prior to and during the admission cycle and on programme.

The Equality Act (2010) places a legal obligation on higher education institutions (HEIs) not to discriminate against disabled applicants for reasons relating to their disability.

There are, however, some justifications for assessing applicants prior to offer. For some disabilities and some courses, it may be necessary to carry out a risk assessment before making an offer. A member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service should be contacted for support in finding out more about the nature of the applicant's disability, and advice on what reasonable adjustments could be made to eliminate an assessed risk. Only after reasonable adjustments have been seriously considered and dismissed as being unfeasible can the applicant's disability be used as a reason to refuse entry to the course.

Higher Education Institutions must comply with the Equality Act. However, applicants with significant mobility difficulties should inform the University College of their disability in good time to ensure their access needs are met. An offer going out to applicants in this category requires the University College to ensure that it is fully accessible to the student and a member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service should be contacted for support with the assessment.

Where adjustments cannot be made prior to enrolment on a course, the applicant may have to defer entry. Courses and modules may have different methods of teaching such as lecture, laboratory, seminar, practical facilities and online support systems. Applicants must be sure that they are able to use all teaching and learning methods.

The University College is obliged not to discriminate against disabled non-UK applicants, but they are not eligible for the same level of individual funding received by the majority of UK students. This means that a decision has to be made about whether the cost of supporting/making reasonable adjustments can be met by the University College. A member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service should be contacted to arrange an assessment.

For some disabilities and some courses, it may be necessary to carry out a risk assessment before making an offer. A member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service should be contacted for support in finding out more about the nature of the applicant's disability, and advice on what reasonable adjustments could be made to eliminate an assessed risk. Only after reasonable adjustments have been seriously considered and dismissed as being unfeasible can the applicant's disability be used as a reason to refuse entry to the course.

Occasionally the nature of an applicant's disability will conflict in essence with the nature of the course. For further information and guidance on whether a particular set of circumstances contain 'material and substantial' issues, please consult with a member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service.

Any justification for discrimination would have to be relevant to the academic standards of a particular course and to the abilities of an individual applicant. Consideration must also be given to how a disabled student might meet the learning outcomes of their course through different methods of assessment.

The University College will endeavour to make any reasonable adjustments necessary to accommodate learning support requirements. However, given the short timescale between clearing and enrolment, it may not be possible to fully accommodate the needs of a student in time to allow for enrolment in that year. Students admitted through clearing are strongly advised to contact a member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service as soon as possible.

All students attending a course at the University College must be:

- able to demonstrate the ability to cope emotionally and practically with the workload of a higher education course
- aware of the demands of the course
- not a risk to themselves or other students and staff

# Processes for applicants with special needs

- 1. All applications will be assessed initially on the basis of academic ability.
- 2. Where an offer is to be made to the applicant and the applicant has declared that they have use of a wheelchair or have mobility difficulties, have two or more disabilities, or have sight or hearing impairment disabilities, the University will invite the student to meet a member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service and attend an access tour.
- 3. If it is deemed necessary, the student will be invited to come in to the University College to ensure that they can see the facilities available but also to give them a clear understanding of the limitations of any campus facilities. Again, the letter inviting the applicant to visit will make it clear that it is the applicant's responsibility to ensure that they are able to undertake the course.

4. The decision on whether or not an applicant can undertake a course will be taken by the Head of School/Department or Director of Higher Education with advice from the a member of the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service.

During clearing, applicants may be made an offer based on information provided over the telephone. It is important, in these cases, that the formal offer instructs students with special needs to contact the University and arrange to visit, and makes it clear that it is the applicant's responsibility to ensure that they are able to attend the course.

Where major adjustments are required, it may not be possible to admit an applicant in that year. During the admissions and registration process the Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service actively encourages students to disclose if they are 'in care', a 'care leaver' or 'care-experienced'. Additional support is available for these young people. This may vary according to the individual, but is likely to include additional financial and welfare support/assistance.

The team also encourage disclosure of whether students are young adult carers (16-24 year olds whose life is in some way restricted because of the need to take responsibility for the care of a person on a regular basis). As well as any additional support the team have good links to specialist external agencies which offer support and provide further assistance.

The Student Wellbeing and Inclusion Service offers a range of services including additional learning support, financial hardship assistance and welfare and counselling. These services are promoted to students as widely as possible including at open days, during application and registration, at induction, through the Student Handbook, marketing materials, noticeboards, student communication mechanisms and academic staff and on our website at http://www.writtle.ac.uk/Learner-Services.

#### 4 Admissions criteria and selection

The University College website and the UCAS website provide clear information and guidance on all WUC entry requirements, grades and subjects including G/VCE A-Level tariff scores, Access to HE Diploma, BTEC qualifications (QCF), NPTC, City and Guilds, International Baccalaureate, Advanced Diploma and Cambridge Pre-U, functional skills, GCSEs and practical experience.

Whilst we will normally consider a wide range of subjects as appropriate entry onto our courses, applicants are advised to check individual course requirements, where in some cases there are specific subjects or combination of subjects which we believe will provide the best preparation for study on a particular course. Detailed UCAS Entry requirements are available within the UCAS Course search facility. These provide details about our courses, the University College and course specific entry qualifications.

Unit grade information will be made available for all certificated AS and A level qualifications. We will not state specific unit grades as part of our conditional offers but we may look closely at unit grades in cases where applicants do not meet the conditions of their offers at Confirmation. Unit grade information will also be taken into consideration during Clearing.

The University College welcomes applications from those with vocational qualifications, who are returning to education, who do not have the specified formal qualifications, who are not applying directly from or within a year of leaving school or college, who have non-standard qualifications or who request work or life experience to be taken into account as part of their application.

In addition to academic qualifications the University College will consider whether the applicant is suitably motivated to successful complete their chosen course. When selecting applicants the University College will take into account information provided within the personal statement and reference.

International qualifications are also welcomed together with an appropriate level of English Language. International qualifications are evaluated by referring to independently published guides such as UK ENIC and the UCAS Guide to International Qualifications.

The University College requires applicants to provide satisfactory evidence of their academic achievements and reserves the right to verify all qualifications declared by an applicant. In the event that an applicant is unable to evidence their achievement to the satisfaction of the University College, we reserve the right to withdraw any offers made.

#### 5 Deferred Entry

Applicants may wish to defer their entry. The University College generally welcomes applicants who intend to defer their entry for a year (e.g. to undertake a gap year). If this is the case the applicant should contact the University College Admissions Office or UCAS.

Applicants who apply via UCAS must follow UCAS deferral procedures. The University College will not normally allow an applicant to defer their entry for more than one year. In these circumstances, if the applicant requests a deferral for more than one year, they must re-start their application.

# 6 Interviews

For the majority of programmes, the University College does not require applicants to attend an interview as part of the selection process. However, some programme areas require applicants to attend an interview as one element of the decision-making process and prior to making an offer. Interviews provide a valuable opportunity for applicants to demonstrate their communication skills, analytical and/or practical skills, motivation and interest in a specific programme of study. Courses which require an interview are clearly identified both on the University College website and UCAS Course Search – Entry Profiles. All applicants for interview for a specific course are assessed individually, without partiality or bias, in line with published entry criteria and in accordance with the admissions policy in relation to equality and diversity.

Interview dates, times and duration will be published in advance of the admissions cycle. Applicants will be provided with adequate notice period prior to interview, normally a minimum of two weeks, together with an alternative interview date. Interviews for full-time undergraduate students will be processed electronically via UCAS.

The University College will make available, where reasonably possible, telephone or Skype interviews and follow the same principles of a face-to-face interview. If an applicant is under the age of 18 years of age at the time of the interview, necessary arrangements will be made under our Safeguarding Policy. Applicants are encouraged to inform the University College of any specific requirements or support needs prior to interview so that reasonable adjustments can be made to support the interview.

Applicants will be sent clear pre-interview information in relation to the interview process, the structure of the day, interview criteria, preparation and assessment in advance of the interview. Applicants may be asked specific questions in relation to their personal statement and practical experience. Applicants will be informed in advance of interview if they are expected to undertake any appropriate research.

Following the interview, the outcome will be communicated normally with seven (7) working days from the date of interview. However, during busy periods, particularly during Christmas closure, turnaround times may be extended. Any written notes made during the interview by the interviewer can be requested following the interview. Any additional requests for interview feedback should be made in writing by the applicant to the Admissions Office.

Travel and accommodation costs incurred by the applicant when attending an interview will not normally be refunded.

#### 7 Admissions tests

It is not Writtle University College's standard policy to use admissions tests as part of its selection process.

# 8 Portfolio guidelines

For courses in Design, applications are expected to demonstrate an interest in design and creative studies. It is recommended that applicants submit a portfolio of design work during the application process. The portfolio may include work produced from a recognised art and design course or personal work.

#### 9 Contextual data

Since 2012 the University College has collected contextual applicant data via UCAS. Publicly available datasets from the government and other agencies, such as school/college A level performance, are collated and stored. Contextual data may be used a part of the overall decision making process and will not be used in isolation. However, no decisions will be made purely on the basis of this information and all undergraduate applicants must meet our standard academic criteria to be considered for entry.

#### 10 Offers

Following submission of an application, the applicant will be issued with an acknowledgement as soon as possible. Decisions will be made as quickly as possible and offers will normally be dispatched via electronic or paper means within 5-15 working days. This may be extended over the Christmas period, when the University College closes or for complex applications and where additional information is required. Any offer and/or subsequent registrations are made on the basis that the information supplied by the applicant is true and complete.

In some cases where an applicant has applied for one course and is unsuccessful, an alternative course may be offered, in which case this will be officially communicated to the applicant by the Admissions Office. The applicant is then asked to confirm that they accept an alternative course by emailing confirmation to the Admissions Office.

If an offer cannot be made, the applicant's file is referred to the appointed subject specific Admissions Officer and/or Head of School. This ensures that the file has been thoroughly examined and no details/evidence missed. The detail of the offer-making process for student who declare certain types of disability or additional needs is set out in Section 3 above.

In light of additional information which was not available at the time of selection, an offer may be amended or, in exceptional circumstances, withdrawn. The University College reserves the right to correct errors in the communication of decisions and offers. However, an offer made in error where all conditions have been satisfied will only be withdrawn with the applicant's consent. The University College retains the right to withdraw an offer of a place or terminate the registration of a student should it subsequently come to light that the information provided by an

applicant in support of their application was inaccurate or incomplete or a misrepresentation of the applicant's academic and other achievements.

### 11 Your right to cancel

Once an applicant has accepted an offer, they have the right to cancel the contract with the University College at any time within 14 days of the date that they formally accepted the offer. For the avoidance of doubt, the offer of a place will be confirmed on receipt of correspondence from the University College, which will be individually addressed to the applicant (and not when the applicant receives the electronic confirmation through UCAS). To exercise the right to cancel the applicant must notify the University College in writing, by either following the instructions provided by UCAS or writing to admissions@writtle.ac.uk confirm the wish to cancel.

#### 12 Feedback to unsuccessful applicants

In order to support our transparent admissions process, the University College undertakes to provide appropriate and high quality feedback to unsuccessful applicants. Feedback will only be made direct to the applicant unless the University College receives a written request from the applicant to share information with other individuals. Occasionally, successful applicants request feedback following offer and/or interview, the Admissions Office will support these requests.

UCAS has developed an online electronic feedback system. This has enabled the University College to provide a brief description of why an application has been deemed unsuccessful through the UCAS system. Applicants can view the decision and any reasons via UCAS Track.

#### 13 Applicant appeals and complaints procedure

We recognise that very occasionally applicants may have reason to question or express an opinion to the University College about its decision or the way in which their application has been handled. Complaints or appeals should be submitted as soon as possible and no later than 30 days of the admissions decision being communicated the applicant. The following link provided details of the admissions complaints and appeals procedure for applicants to Higher Education courses: https://writtle.ac.uk/pdfs/Higher-Education-Applicants-Complaints-and-Appeals-Procedure.pdf

# 14 Confirmation of results

'Confirmation' refers to the period in August when universities/colleges receive examination results. Applicants who achieve the required entry grades have their conditional offer confirmed and accepted. Applicants who have not met the conditions of offer are reviewed by an Admissions Officer who will contact the applicant directly to discuss possible alternate course/s, although there is no guarantee that an offer will be confirmed.

The confirmation procedure includes the exchange and processing of data between UCAS and universities/colleges. UCAS Track is available to all students to keep up-to-date with the progress of their application and reply to offers.

#### 15 Student Induction

During confirmation applicants receive further detailed information to support academic preparation, including induction and registration details. A comprehensive *Induction Guide* is available to all confirmed applicants in early September.

# 16 Accreditation of prior and experiential learning (AP(E)L)

Applicants may be considered through the Accreditation of Prior Learning (APL) or Accreditation of Prior Experiential Learning (APEL) process, which may be certificated or experiential respectively. The Admissions Officer for the relevant course is responsible for advising the student on whether their previous learning might be used to replace part of their proposed course of study. An application for APEL is considered by the Credit Approvals Board. Staff and applicant guides on the APEL process are available on our website at <a href="https://writtle.ac.uk/HE-Regulations-&-Policies">https://writtle.ac.uk/HE-Regulations-&-Policies</a>

The University College welcomes degree top-up applications from students who have gained previous qualifications. Applicants are advised to contact the subject admissions tutor to discuss individual requirements. Bridging studies may be required as part of the entry criteria, where applicable.

If an undergraduate applicant withdraws from a programme in one year, and wishes to re-apply, the applicant is required to use the UCAS admissions process to re-apply. The University College reserves the right not to consider an applicant for re-entry if the applicant has previously been withdrawn on academic grounds, unless extenuating circumstances have been declared and approved.

#### 17 Fees and Finances

Information on all course related costs are clearly available on the course and financial pages of the University College website: <a href="https://writtle.ac.uk/Finances">https://writtle.ac.uk/Finances</a>.

Students are expected to have sufficient funds to pay course fees and living expenses during their period of study, and are asked to provide details of funding arrangements on the application form and during the enrolment process.

The University College charges different levels of tuition fees depending on whether the student is classified as either a Home student or an International student. The Admissions Team determines the tuition fee status of a student in accordance with UK government Education (Fees and Awards) Regulations, which state that students who are classified as 'overseas' may be charged a higher level of fee than those classified as 'home' students. Assessments of fee status are carried out on an individual basis and take into account the circumstances of each applicant. Assessments cannot be carried out until an application for admission has been made.

There is a compulsory tuition fee deposit requirement for overseas applicants.

#### 18 English Language Requirements

Applicants whose first language is not English must prove that they are sufficiently able to understand and express themselves in both spoken and written English. Writtle University College requires that these applicants have a minimum level of English language as shown below (Table 1).

Table 1	IELTS [validity 2 years]
FE [CEFR B1]	Overall score 5.5
Evidence of SELT will be required for CAS	Minimum 5.0 in all elements
FDA / Higher Certificates / Higher Diplomas [CEFR B1] Evidence of SELT will be required for CAS	Overall score 5.5 Minimum 5.0 in all elements
UG degree [CEFR B2]	Overall score 6.0
Evidence of SELT is not required for CAS	Minimum 5.5 in all elements

PG [CEFR B2]	Overall score 6.5
Evidence of SELT is not required for CAS	Minimum 5.5 in all elements

Entry criteria for students whose first language is not English are reviewed annually and the latest criteria is displayed on our website at <a href="https://writtle.ac.uk/English-Language-Requirements">https://writtle.ac.uk/English-Language-Requirements</a>. Reviews include consideration of UKVI rules and are carried out in consultation with academic teams, the Pre-Sessional English Language (PSEL) course leader and staff responsible for international student recruitment.

# 19 Fraudulent statements, omissions and similarity detection

UCAS provides a Similarity Detection Service, which identifies potential plagiarism in applicants' personal statements. Full details are published on the <u>UCAS website</u> for HE Staff.

The following is the policy and procedure that Writtle University College will adopt in the event that a concern is raised:

- where UCAS reports an applicant under the Similarity Detection Service and the percentage of similarity is equal to
  or above 40%, the Head of Admissions will contact the applicant and invite him/her to submit a revised personal
  statement within fourteen (14) days;
- on receipt of a revised personal statement, the application will be sent to the relevant subject Admissions Tutor and a decision made following the standard admissions procedure;
- where no revised statement is received within fourteen (14) days, a reminder will be sent to the applicant by the
  Head of Admissions, giving a further seven (7) days' notice and a notification of a possible course rejection if no
  response is received;
- where no revised statement is received after the two notifications, the applicant's file will be passed to the relevant subject Admissions Tutor with the percentage score in order to make a decision.

#### 20 Discontinued or suspended courses

Occasionally the University College will need to suspend or withdraw a course in between an applicant accepting an offer and the course commencing. This may occur where we have received lower than anticipated application numbers to a particular course. In this scenario, it may be financially non-viable for WUC to run the course and we may not be able to guarantee the quality of the student experience. We appreciate the disappointment and disruption this can cause for applicants and we will make reasonable endeavours to avoid such action. Where it *is* necessary to suspend or withdraw a course, we will take that decision as early as possible.

Following a decision by the University College to suspend or withdraw a course of study, we commit to notifying all offer holders by email within 48 hours and all applicants within five (5) working days. Wherever possible we will offer a place on an alternative WUC course of study, subject to admissions requirements.

Where a home applicant has indicated that they do *not* wish to accept an offer of an alternative course at WUC, we will update the Universities and Colleges Admissions Services (UCAS) within 48 hours. Where an international applicant has indicated that they do *not* wish to accept an offer of an alternative course at WUC, we will refund in full any deposits paid by the applicant. Where necessary we will also withdraw any Confirmation of Acceptance for Study (CAS) approvals we may have lodged with UK Visas and Immigration (UKVI).

#### 21 Changes to course content or delivery

The University College is committed to providing accurate and appropriate pre-entry information and support to prospective students to enable them to make an informed decision about whether to apply for a course. We will do

everything possible to avoid implementing any changes that significantly affect the content or delivery of your course at WUC. Where major changes are planned to a course, these will normally apply to future student intakes and will be reflected in the course information available to applicants. The need for us to make major changes to your course is only likely to occur in the event of sudden staffing changes or an unforeseen business continuity risk.

In the unlikely event that we deem it necessary to make major changes to a course after it has been advertised and once applications have been received, we will notify all applicants and offer holders within five (5) working days, explaining the nature of the changes made. Where the applicant decides to withdraw or cancel, the University College will take practical and reasonable steps to support them to transfer to an alternative course or institution.

#### 22 Data protection and privacy

The University College will collect, store and process personal data in order to meet it obligations under the WUC Terms and Conditions and for the purposes stated in its Data Protection Policy and Fair Processing Notice. The information on the application will form a key part of the individual student record. Should the applicant register as a student, this information will be used to make statutory returns to various bodies such as the Higher Education Statistics Agency (HESA). A full and detailed declaration is available upon request and part of the online registration process for each year that the student is registered with the University College. All data is held and processed in accordance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018. Our Policy is available on our website at: <a href="https://writtle.ac.uk/pdfs/Data Protection Policy.pdf">https://writtle.ac.uk/pdfs/Data Protection Policy.pdf</a>

The Admissions Office will not share applicant or student personal details with a third party, unless we receive confirmation from the applicant/student in writing in the form a 'consent to share' declaration. All data is treated in strict confidence and is shared between the applicant/student, the Admissions Officer and admissions staff within the appropriate School and Department involved in the admissions processes. All application data is stored centrally in the Admissions Office. Application data of successful applicants forms the basis of the student record. All data is held and processed in accordance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018.

Anonymised applicant data is analysed by the University College for statutory monitoring, planning, teaching and learning, equality and diversity and in order to ensure that the processes are fair and effective.

You have the right to access your personal data held on file by the University College. All such requests should be made in writing to <a href="mailto:dpo@writtle.ac.uk">dpo@writtle.ac.uk</a>.

#### 23 Record keeping

The University College is committed to the management and disposal of its academic and non-academic records. The Records Retention Policy and Retention schedule outlines our approach to the creation, retrieval, storage and disposal of student records.

The University College will keep admissions documents for all students who register at the University College for the entire period during which a student is registered with Writtle University College and then for a further six (6) year period following the end of the relationship.

As part of the admissions process for applicants who are not successful in gaining admission, the files are held for a minimum of 12 months and subsequently confidentially destroyed.

As part of the University College's UKVI (Home Office) Student Sponsor Licence compliance duty, the University College is required to maintain copies of relevant student passports and visas (valid for study) together with academic qualifications, transcripts and associated documents used for the basis of admission. These documents form part of the Student Visa audit checks and registration process. These documents are stored confidentially.